
 

VARIANCE BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Wednesday, January 3, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. 
Roseville City Hall Council Chambers, 2660 Civic Center Drive 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call & Introductions 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Review of Minutes: October 25, 2017 

5. Public Hearings 

a. Planning File 17-020: Request by Meritex-Highcrest DC III, LLC, 2501/2503 Walnut 
Street, for a variance to City Code §1011.03.A.3.e (Minimum Landscape Requirement) to 
allow a reduced number of trees and shrubs than required by the Code. 

6. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Variance Board Meeting 
City Council Chambers, 2660 Civic Center Drive 

Draft Minutes – Wednesday, October 25, 2017 – 5:30 p.m. 
 

1. Call to Order 1 

Chair Daire called to order the Variance Board meeting at 5:30 p.m. and reviewed the 2 

role and purpose of the Variance Board. 3 

 4 

2. Roll Call & Introductions 5 

At the request of Chair Daire, City Planner Thomas Paschke called the Roll. 6 

 7 

Members Present:  Chair James Daire, Vice Chair Chuck Gitzen, and Member Julie  8 

   Kimble  9 

 10 

Members Absent: Alternate Member Peter Sparby 11 

 12 

Staff Present:  City Planner Thomas Paschke 13 

 14 

3. Review of Minutes 15 

Commissioners had an opportunity to review draft minutes and submit their comments 16 

and corrections to staff prior to tonight’s meeting, for incorporation of those revisions 17 

into the draft minutes. 18 

 19 

Member Gitzen requested lines 44 and 86 be changed to, “Chair Daire” instead of “Chair 20 

Murphy.” 21 

 22 

MOTION 23 

Member Gitzen moved, seconded by Member Kimble to approve meeting minutes 24 

of July 12, 2017 as amended. 25 

 26 

Ayes: 3 27 

Nays: 0 28 

Motion carried. 29 

 30 

4. Public Hearings 31 

Chair Daire reviewed protocol for Public Hearings and public comment. 32 

 33 

a. PLANNING FILE 17-017 34 

Request by Stan Koch and Sons Trucking, 2500 County Road C, for a 35 

variance to City Code §1011.08.A.3, to allow an 8-foot security fence in the 36 

front yard. 37 

City Planner Paschke reviewed the variance request for this property, as detailed 38 

in the staff report dated October 25, 2017.  Mr. Paschke reported there is a 39 

standing variance on this property for a six-foot fence.  After reviewing fences 40 

and the security of the equipment kept within it, the applicant is requesting the 41 

height be changed to an eight-foot fence with a bend to the top rail.  Staff has 42 

concluded it meets the criteria in support of the requested variance, and 43 

recommends approval with the following condition:  44 



Variance Board Meeting 
Minutes – Wednesday, October 25, 2017 
Page 2 

1. The fence is constructed as proposed on the illustration submitted with 45 

the variance application.  46 

 47 

At the request of Chair Daire, Mr. Paschke referred to a map and pointed out the 48 

location of the fence.  He assumed the fence will hook up to the existing chain 49 

link fence on the west side of the property and stated the applicant is still in 50 

process of completing some of their site improvements. 51 

 52 

Ann Steingraeber, Attorney with Winthrop and Weinstine, introduced herself as 53 

representing the applicant.  54 

 55 

Bob Buss, Stan Koch and Sons Trucking, referred to a map and reported there 56 

will be one other section of ornamental fence in the northwest corner that would 57 

come down thirty feet and be parallel with the existing building. It would match 58 

up with the chain link fence that runs the total distance of west property line.  59 

There is also a security gate set off Walnut Street about 120 feet.   60 

 61 

Chair Daire inquired if the purpose of the fence was to provide security of the 62 

equipment, but not the building and parking lot to the east since they are not 63 

protected by the fence.   64 

 65 

Mr. Buss confirmed the building serves as a security border with the rest of the 66 

fence.  He referred to the map and pointed out where the chain link fence would 67 

be located on the site. The purpose of the ornamental fence is to meet City code 68 

and to complete the fencing to secure the lot.  69 

 70 

Member Kimble inquired about the difference between a six or eight-foot fence. 71 

 72 

Mr. Buss stated they determined that a six-foot fence is easier to get over and for 73 

security reasons, they are now requesting an eight-foot fence. The curvature 74 

points out and helps with security, but on a six-foot fence, it would be too low.  75 

 76 

Member Gitzen explained the location of the fence is the same and was 77 

previously approved, and the applicant is requesting an eight-foot fence instead of 78 

a six-foot fence.  79 

 80 

Members Kimble and Gitzen stated they are in support of this request.  81 

 82 

MOTION 83 

Member Kimble moved, seconded by Member Gitzen to approve VB 84 

Resolution No.__ (Attachment D) entitled, “A Resolution approving a 85 

VARIANCE to Roseville City Code, §1011.08 (Fences in All Districts) at 2500 86 

County Road C (PF17-017);” to allow for an eight-foot tall security fence, 87 

subject to the condition outline in the staff report dated October 25, 2017.  88 

 89 



Variance Board Meeting 
Minutes – Wednesday, October 25, 2017 

Page 3 

Ayes: 3 90 

Nays: 0 91 

Motion carried. 92 

 93 

2. Adjournment 94 

 95 

MOTION 96 

Member Gitzen moved, seconded by Member Kimble to adjourn the meeting at 97 

approximately 5:42 p.m. 98 

 99 

Ayes: 3 100 

Nays: 0 101 

Motion carried. 102 



REQUEST FOR VARIANCE BOARD ACTION 
Agenda Date: 01/03/18 
Agenda Item:   5a

Prepared By  Agenda Section 
Public Hearings 

Department Approval 

Item Description: Consider a Variance pursuant to §1011.03.A.3.e (Minimum Landscape 
Requirement) and §1009, Variances, of the City Code to install a reduced 
number of trees and shrubs than required by the Code for the properties 
identified as 2501 and 2503 Walnut Street (PF17-020). 

PF17-020_RVBA_2501Walnut_010318 
Page 1 of 2 

APPLICATION INFORMATION 1 
Applicant: Meritex-Highcrest DC III, LLC 2 

Location: 2501/2503 Walnut Street 3 

Property Owner: Same 4 

Application Submission: 12/01/17; deemed complete 12/07/17 5 

City Action Deadline: 01/30/18 6 

Planning File History: None  7 

LEVEL OF DISCRETION IN DECISION MAKING:  Actions taken on a Variance request is quasi-8 

judicial; the City’s role is to determine the facts associated with the request and weigh those facts 9 

against the legal standards in State Statutes and City Code.  10 

BRIEF INTRODUCTION 11 
This variance has been prompted by the applicant’s/property owner’s desire to redevelop the 12 

property with two 144,000 sq. ft. office/warehouse structures on the premises, which requires the 13 

greater amount of landscaping under §1011.03.A.3.e (Minimum Landscape Requirement) of the 14 

Zoning Code.  Specifically, under the building square footage landscaping requirements, the site 15 

would be required to install 288 trees and 1,728 shrubs (see narrative – Attachment C).  16 

PROPOSAL 17 
The applicant/property owner proposed in place of the greater requirement that a variance be 18 

granted to install 144 trees and 627 shrubs throughout the site, which is substantially more trees 19 

and shrubs than the perimeter landscape requirement identified in the Code.  20 

STAFF ANALYSIS 21 
In review of the Zoning Code, the Planning Division concludes that the landscaping requirement 22 

of §1011.03.A.3.e never contemplated a very large industrial development, where nearly 300,000 23 

square feet of building size would be used to calculate the required landscaping.   24 

Most every project requires substantial landscaping, which is by design, as most commercial and 25 

industrial property in Roseville contains very little landscaping.  Given this, the Planning 26 

Division has only experienced one project since the new landscape requirements were introduced 27 

with the Zoning Code update of 2010 and that project was Walmart.  Walmart, however, does 28 



PF17-020_RVBA_2501Walnut_010318 
Page 2 of 2 

 

not compare to the overall requirement of the Meritex project, but similar to the proposal they 29 

are seeking via the variance. 30 

The Planning Division concludes that the development project for 2501 Walnut is a unique site 31 

development given the square footage of the two warehouse structures proposed.  Without a vast 32 

amount of green space included in the development proposal, achieving compliance with 33 

§1011.03.A.3.e is impossible given spacing requirements necessary for trees and shrubs.  34 

Planning staff therefore has concluded practical difficulties do exist that support the approval of 35 

a variance to §1011.03.A.3.e of the Zoning Code.   36 

VARIANCE BOARD ACTION 37 
By motion, approve the attached resolution approving a variance to §1011.03.A.3.e (Minimum 38 

Landscape Requirement), to allow the installation of a minimum 144 trees and 627 shrubs at 39 

2501 Walnut Street, subject to the following conditions: 40 

1. A final landscape plan consistent with the Variance approval being submitted to the 41 

Planning Division for review and approval prior to building permit issuance. 42 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS 43 
a. Pass a motion to table the item for future action.  An action to table must be tied to the need 44 

of clarity, analysis and/or information necessary to make a recommendation on the request. 45 

b. Pass a motion denying the proposal.  An action to deny must include findings of fact 46 

germane to the request. 47 

Report prepared by:  Thomas Paschke, City Planner 651-792-7074 | thomas.paschke@cityofroseville.com 

Attachments: A. Area map B. Aerial map 
 C. Narrative D. Draft resolution  



TERMINAL  RD

W
ALNUT  ST

TERMINAL  RD (Private)
HIGHCREST  RD  (Private)

2500 2425

2
4

7
0

2507

2400

2501

Data Sources

* Ramsey County GIS Base Map (12/5/2017)

For further information regarding the contents of this map contact:

City of Roseville, Community Development Department,

2660 Civic Center Drive, Roseville MN

Disclaimer
This map is neither a legally recorded map nor a survey and is not intended to be used as one. This map is a compilation of records,
information and data located in various city, county, state and federal offices and other sources regarding the area shown, and is to
be used for reference purposes only. The City does not warrant that the Geographic Information System (GIS) Data used to prepare
this map are error free, and the City does not represent that the GIS Data can be used for navigational, tracking or any other purpose
requiring exacting measurement of distance or direction or precision in the depiction of geographic features. If errors or discrepancies
are found please contact 651-792-7085. The preceding disclaimer is provided pursuant to Minnesota Statutes §466.03, Subd. 21 (2000),
and the user of this map acknowledges that the City shall not be liable for any damages, and expressly waives all claims, and agrees to
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City from any and all claims brought by User, its employees or agents, or third parties which
arise out of the user's access or use of data provided.

Site Location
Prepared by:

Community Development Department

Printed: December 12, 2017

Attachment A for Planning File 17-020

0 100 200 Feet

Location Map

L



MILLWOOD AVENUE W

TERMINAL  RD

W
ALNUT  ST

TERMINAL  RD (Private)
HIGHCREST  RD  (Private)

Prepared by:

Community Development Department

Printed: December 27, 2017

This map is neither a legally recorded map nor a survey and is not intended to be used as one. This map is a compilation of records,

information and data located in various city, county, state and federal offices and other sources regarding the area shown, and is to

be used for reference purposes only. The City does not warrant that the Geographic Information System (GIS) Data used to prepare

this map are error free, and the City does not represent that the GIS Data can be used for navigational, tracking or any other purpose

requiring exacting measurement of distance or direction or precision in the depiction of geographic features. If errors or discrepancies

are found please contact 651-792-7085. The preceding disclaimer is provided pursuant to Minnesota Statutes §466.03, Subd. 21 (2000),

and the user of this map acknowledges that the City shall not be liable for any damages, and expressly waives all claims, and agrees to

defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City from any and all claims brought by User, its employees or agents, or third parties which

arise out of the user's access or use of data provided.

Site Location

0 100 200
Feet

Location Map

Disclaimer

Attachment B for Planning File 17-020

Data Sources

* Ramsey County GIS Base Map (12/5/2017)

* Aerial Data: Surdex (4/2015)

For further information regarding the contents of this map contact:

City of Roseville, Community Development Department,

2660 Civic Center Drive, Roseville MN L



Attachment C



Attachment C






